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1. NAME of PROPERTY @ i
HIGTORIC HAME: The Groveland Hote! ;
X i
OTHER NAME/SITE NUMBER: The Garrote Hotei/Groveland Inn & £af {
INTERAGENCY RESOURCES DNaSION |
NATIORAL PARK SERVICE |
2. LOCATION !
STREET & NUMBER: 18787 Main Street (Califarmia State Highwey 120) NOT FOR PUBLICATCN: M/A
CITY/TOWN: Groveland VICINITY: N/A
s1aTE: California COUNTY: Tuoluimne CODE: 109 7iP CODE: 95371

3. CLASSIFICATION

OWMERCHF of PRCPERTY: Private CATEGORY of PROPERTY: Builcings
NUMBER of RESQURCES WITHIN PROPERTY:
CONTRIBUTING: NONGONTRIBUTING:

BUILIZINGS: 2

SITES:

STRUCTURES:

OBJECTS:; o

TOT 2 o

NUMBER OF CONTRIBUTING RESOURCES FREVIOUSLY
NAME OF RELATED MULTIPLE PROPERTY LISTING IN,A LISTED IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER: O

4. STATE/FEDERAL AGENCY CERTIFICATION

As the designated authority under the National! Histotic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, !
hereby certify that this nominatior __ _ request for determination of eligibility meets the
documentation standards ?Sa_regnste.rmg properties in the National Register of Historic Places ang
meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Pari 60.

>In my opinion, the property _X meets ___ does not meet the National Register Criteria.

2{‘( ‘ ___See continuation shest.
folel 3pe/?4
SISNATIRE LAERTIFYINGOFFICIAL DATE

California Office of Historic Preservation

STATE or FEDERAL AGENCY and BUREAU

>in my opinion, the property __ meets ___ does not meet the National Register Criteria.
___See continuation shest,

S!GNATURE of COMMENTING ot OfHEﬁ OFFICIAL DATE

STATE or FEDERAL AGENCY and BUREAL

-~ e .. o——_

[



NF3 Form 10-900 (Ravised 81966} Unitec States Departinent cf the lrerior, Natlonal Parx Service OME Ne. 1024-0013

Nationa! Ragister of Histeric Places, Registration Form

The Groveland Hote!

- ‘
5. /NATIONAL PARK SERVICE CEHTIFICATIONG]) |, herebygectity thfat tti vis,
/enterad in t:e Nationai Register ) 24 U B 5 (,L

_____See continuation shaat.
__ determined ¢ligible for the National Fecgister 2% — —
_____See continuation sheet. Ve, ’L(: ?in the
_ determined nat eligible for the National Register el pao + .
L= Yo 92'.
__removed from the National Regicter e
___ other (explein): S
’« eve— e L ———_— - - p T
Signature of Keeper Dale of
Acteon
6. FUNCTION or USE HISTORIC FUNCTIONS (CATEGORY/ ubcategory) CURRENT FUNGCTICNS (CATEGOR /SUBCaIegor
DOMESTIC/notel DCMESTIC/hoted
COMMENRCE/TRADE /restaurant COMMERCE,/ TRADE /reciguram
DOMEZSTIC single swelling
COMNMERCZ/TRADE/departiment store
7. DESCRIPTION
ARCHITECTURAL CLASSIFICATION: MATERIALS:
Hotel: MID-19th CENTURY/other: adcke commercial Foundation: slate. Annex: Conciete
Hotel Annex: EARLY 20th CENTURY REVIVAL/NecClassical wails: Adcbe. Annex: Wooed
Root. 'asphalt Annex: Metzl

other: Wooden balcony (bath buildings)
OTHER DESCRIPTION:

Describe present and histeric physical appearance. X See continuaticn sheat.

8. STATEMENT of SIGN!FICANCE

Certifying officiai has considered the significance of this propeity in relation to other preperties:

____NATIONALLY __x STATEWIDE ___ LOCALLY
APPLICABLE NATIGNAL REGISTER CRITERIA: C & A CRITERIA CONSIDERATIONS (exceptions): ___
AREAS of SIGNIFICARCE:  Architecture Commerce
Exploration/Settlement
PERIOD(S) of SIGNIFICANCE: 1851 to 1935 SIGNIFICANT DATES: 1850-51, 1315
SIGNIFICANT PERSON(S):

CULTURAL AFFILIATION: NJA

ARCHITECTBUILGER: Hotei: unknown.
Hotel Annex: Withered, Waodward architect/Scudamore, Robert builder.

State significance of property, and iustify criteria, citeria consideratior:s, and areas anc periods of
significance noted above. _ X See continuation sheet.
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2. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCIES _ X See continuation sheet.

Previous documentation on fie (NPSj: N/A

pretiminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) has bezn requested.
previously licted in the Nationai Register

previously detsrimined eligible by tha Naticnal Register

designatad z National Historic Landmark

recorded by ldisicric American Buildings Survev #

racorded by Historic American Engineering Record # .
recerded in Big Oak Flat - Groveland Historic Sites Survey, 1688.

<1

Primary Location cf Additional Data:

X State nistaric nreservation »ffice

Cther state agancy

Federal agency

Local government

University

X Other -- Specity Repcsitary:  Southern Tuolumne County Historical Scciety, Big Oak
Fiat, CA. 95305

10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE of PROPERTY: £.27

UTM REFERENCES: Zone Easting Northing Zone Fa.ang Northing
A 10 743200 4191410 B
4] — D - — —_—

___ See continuation sheet.

Verbal Boundary Desciiption: __X_ See continuation sheet.
All of Tuclumne County Tax Assesscr’s Parcel Mumbers: 7-080-01 and 7-080-02.

Boundary Justification: ____ See continuation sheet,

This inciudes all pruperty associated with subject buildings under cwnership of appiicant.

11. FORM PREPARED BY

NAME/TITLE: Mark V. Thomton, Groveland Historian

ORGANIZATION: Mark V. Thornten, Historian-Consultant

STREET & NUMBER: P.0. Box 192

CITY or TOWN: Groveland STATE: California 2IP: 95321
TELEPHONE: {209) ©62-7395

DATE: 10-11-1993
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The Groveland Hotel and Hotel Annex are located on the south pERAGENCYRRANMACES REARION
Main Sireet) and east uf Back Street. The highway is z slightly widehed ang amomRAICPRARK SERVCKiginai Bi
Oak Flat to Yosemite wagon road. The hotel buiidings consist of an adehg & T1¢? SSXT= ; ne
a wood frame struciure Built in 1915, Beth buildings retain a high degree of architectural integrity. Fecently
completed, extensive restoration has, for the most part, stayed true to criginal design guideilines

The adobe structure, inown =zs the Groveland Hotel, is a :aige. two story Lullding measuring
approximately 44 feet wide by 44 feet deep. The building bas stuccned adobe walls and a flat roof, & parapet
rings the top of the bulicing and originaily had veriical wood planks. Horizontal "v* aroove siding covers the
area now. Rolied roohng material es within the parapel. A two story balceny, with shed roof cevering,
surrouncs the Groveland Hote! on the south, west and rorth elevations. Simulated wood, masarite shingies
cover the balcony's 100f. The halcony eaves are encicsed with plain soffit and fascia, with metal guliers
axiending acrsss all eave faces. Gutters have been parrtded to biend in with the wood trim Baicony fluoring
ie wood plavk, supting Lnsts are square anc non-chamfered. Sguare pickets with bevelad fcp and hottom
rails extend around the daicony. A picke! rair alse runs across the nortp side of the Jirst floor. 7ids valing was
originglly discontinuons, bizaking where gleps led down to the adjacent highway. Prici o 71858 the first sicor
raiting wae ot the same cesign as the aeighbaring Ainex buiding's raiing, havicg bean insiallet in the 13405
or '50s An exteinal wood stairway (with ianding and picket railing)y leads down fraom the south (rear) slevation
of the adche building > 2 ccurtyard area.

Conarete walls, most of which date from 1843, surround the Groveland Hotel ai (reiind level, The walk
across the north elevalic.+, thouuh, is believed to have been poured in 1918, replacing the criginai beara walk.
Concrete steps which led cown frem this arca to the roadway were removed several years ago 28 a safety
measu;e. A metai panel ia this front walk covers a stoned lined access ta the basement arez. The Greveland
Hotel basement has a stone wall perimeter (the foundation for the adote '¥al's) with three massive timbers
located down the center of the room o provided siructural support for the building above, An externa! entry
to this hasement was alsc iccated atong the west elevation. it has been willed off. Smail venis aicng this side
are still functional, venis on the other sides have been sealed. An internal stairway provides access from ha
first fioor to the basement. A brick chimney (vintage unknown) is located on the south side of the puilding but
all traces of the weod stove and interior pining have been removed. A 2 foot 4 inch high brick wali, sinvlar
in materials to the chirney, wraps arcuiid the southwest corner of the lower story, axtending absut 4 fest
across each elevaticn.

Located symmetrically across the norih (front) wall of the adobe building's first floor are three windows
separated by two entries. The 1/1 fixed windows are about 4 feet by 7 feet 6 inches (high). The upper pane
is about 1/3 the height of the iower pane. The doorways, including a giazed transom araa, measure 5 feet &
inches by & teet 4 inches. The 1/1 double docers upper glass pane is much larger than the iower wood panei,
Double doors are also centered on the second floct’s north and west walls. Each of these dcors {eature eignt
square panes over two wood panels. The deors are flanked by one &/12 double hung window, excent on the
east side of the north facing docrs. Here, the criginal window has been removed (circa 1272) and the openring
enlargad to accommodate a single half giazed door. The upstairs, south elevation featuies (from west to east)
a single door (1 pane/1 panel), a single 8/12 decuble hung window, and a six pane, fixec window. Tha
downstairs, west elevation has a single door, with a large giass panel and giazed transon:, ofi-get to the south
end of the wall. Immediately on the north side of this deorway is a 7 foot 3 inch high opening extending from
floor level that is filled with a single, fixed pane. An identical glazed opening is cut foward the north end of
this wall. The origin and purpose of these two openings is unknown. The south elevaticn has two dcoiways,
with a single deor (1 pana/1 panei) tewardls the east and a double door, similar to the front entry, off-set to
the west end cf the wall. The east elevation has two 8/12 double hung windows on the secorid floor and two
1/1 fixed windows on the first floor. A third window opening near the south end of the east wail thoth upstairs
and down) originally featured a six pane, rived window. The downstairs window, ihough, haz hesn rermoved
to accommodate & ducting system that ventilates the kiichen. A small, weed frame ventilation shaft encloses
this ducting system, extending to roof line. Cladding on this shaft matches the waii covering of the Hotel
Annex. For the most part, window and door casements appear to date frem 1915,

The other Groveiand Hotel building, known as the Groveland Hctel Annex, is a larges, two story structure
measuring approximataly 24.5 teet wide by 80.5 jeet deep. The Groveland Hotel Annex has a concrete
perimeter foundation with internal pier and post suppoits. Wood frame walls are clad with rustic "v* groove
siding. I 1924, the Eurcpa Hate! (which was tocatea on the north side of Main Street) burned o the groune,
That fire set the northeast corner of the Annex building’s woed shingle ioof a bilaze. Corrugated metal was
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probably instaiied on the rooi upon completicn of the Annex building’s repairs. Beoth corrugated metal reofing
and siding, and */* groove board! ciding have been quite popular in the Grovelana aisa since the 16205, The
Annex building's euves feature plain fascia with tcngue and groowe soffit inlaid hetween the partiaily exposed
rafter ends. Metal gutters extenc across ali eave faces but have been painted 1o blend in with the wacd irim.
The original brick chimney, located near the center of the rcof. was removed absut seven years ago.

incorperated undei the hip roof, across the north {front) elevation, is a two ston,, balcony. Flioorng and
ceiling areas havs beer tinishad off with tonrgue and groove doarding. The cornice above the front balcony
is decorated with centils. Charnfered, square balcony posts arc spanned by three foot high, solid ratis {on
both floors) which isave “* grocve siding {inside and out). The waicony and raiis extend westwait sume ten
feet from the Annex o tie in with the halcony and picket railing of the neighbacring adobe building. A dropped,
fiat roof covers this "bridgs” between the buildings. Qriginally there was oniy a connecting {uncover ecl) porch,
the balcory 2xtens’on was fiist added about twenly vears ago. Lentered on the rear of the Annex is & zingle
door {1 pane/! nanel) flanked by one 1/1 double hung window [both floars), The otiginal rear ciairway to ihe
sacond flecr has been remoeved and a farge, split level sun deck added. Because tha Annex cuildirg is longer
than the adobe bLuilding, the rear deck wraps arcund the scutrwest corner of the Annex betare extending
across to join the adcbe building’s rear baicony. A dropped, fiat ra0f covers this "bridge.” Railing for the rear
deck is of the sams design as the Annex buitding's front rails. Weoed stairs 'ead down from the sur dack 1o
the court yara.

The Groveland Hotet Aninex featwres paired, doubie hung 1/1 windows across beth ficors of the east &nd
wesi walls. A cenlered, giazed door on each floer of the norll: elevailion is fian<ed by maiching bavs
containing feur 1/1 double hung windows. A bay of the same design is centered on the upper and lower tioor
nf ine east slevalicn. The Grevelend Hotel land parce! siopes downward from southwest to northeact. As such,
the scuthwest corner of the firsi fioor of the Annex is at ground ieve! while the northeact comer i about eight
feet above ground level. Thiz provides for a smali storage area ic underlay the front third of ihe Groveland
Hetel Annex. A concrete lined tunnel extends from this iower storage area into the basement ot the Groveland
Hotel (adobe building). There is no internal stairway from the pasement to the first ficor of the Annex. An
outside docr is located on the east wall. The area underneath the front balcony of the AnngxX has also been
enciosed o provide further storage space. A door tc this area is iocated at the east end of the porch,

As touched on earier, & courtyard extends across the south end cf the Groveland Hotel. This area has
been rencvated saverai times ir: the past twenty years. The courtvard features terracad concrete gatios with
aggregate finisl:. These patio areas are lined with raflroad tie retaining walls, small pianter areas and dglicate
shade trees. This landscape theme is carried 2ut aiong the west side of the Groveland Hotel (adobe building)
upon the site of the old Groveland Hotel Bar. Asphalt parking areas bounding the courtyard on the south are
scregned off from the hotel by a row of small trees. Historical infoimation on the appearance cf this area is
sketchy but it appears that the iand originally sloped gradually uphiil {to the south) and was covered with
native grasses. A small orchard and tool shed apparently were lccated on the east side of the Groveland
Hotel prici to the erection cf the Annex building. Te the east of this was the Savery Hotel Garden of the
nineteenth century. The smak drainage running through here was known as “Spring Guich." Chinsse Locust
"trees of heaven" once graced bcth sides of Groveland's Main Street. Most of these rees have been removed,
including the cnes which bordered the front of the Groveland Hotel and Hotel Annex. During the 1870s low
shrubs were planted in the narrow space beiweer the buildings and the highway hut were iater removed
(along with the concrete steps leading up to the adobe building; to comply with Caltrans requirements. This
area is now covered in asphalt.

Although the Groveland Hotei and Hotel Annex buildings have undergone several renovations and various
imodifications through their lifctimec, these buiidings stili retain a nigh degree of historic architectural integrity.
Photographs of the Grovelanc! Hotel from the 1870s down to the presert show a building that has remained
remarkable true 10 its original desigr. lines. Photographs of both the Groveland Hotel and Hotel Annex dating
from 1917 onward, reveal that the recently completed restoration upon these siructures has brought them
back 0 the splendor they enjoyed during Grove'and’s prosperous years cf 1214 ¢ 192¢. Today, these
buildings corivey a very real sense of place and time, harking back, as they dc, to the early twentieih century.
Whether tounst, resident miner, or transieni laborer the Grovelano Hoatel and Groveland Hotal Annex have
served the focal commuiiniiv as one of the hest slaces 1o seek rest and repast. The significant financ:al
investment, hard werk, and dedication of the present nwners insutes th2t these “acilities will continue to serve
ihe Groveiang area foi many years 1o come,
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Applicable Significance Criteria

The Groveland Hotel (zdcbe building) is significant under Critera C ac representing e of the finest
examples of Gold Rusn adobe commercial architecture 10 Le ssen today. The iown of Groveiand is the onily
town in the Mother Lode to boast of a callaction of four adobe buildings wnich dare from the early 1850z, The
Groveland Hotel is the largest adobe Luilding i Groveland and is one of dv2 oldest buildings & Tuolumng
County. it has a high degree of integrity having undergon= faw afterations during s fetime. it digplays
splendid craftsmanship, with solidly constiucted native slate sione walls in the basement and careluily titted
adobe bricks for the walls above. The building derives cignticance under Criteria A, being one of the first
permanent struciures in Garrote {Groveland). The property was first used &s a rading post, then a dwelling
house untii 18G5. From 1868 until 1969, *the property was “editated exclusively o either the hostelry trade
cf serving cs a coarding house.

The Grovetand Hoiel Arnex {weod frame building) is significant under Ciiteria C as reoresenting one of
the finest examples of Neoliassical architecture 1o be found in Tuolumne County today. The Annax building
and the neighiscring Chariotte Hotel are the larcest woad frave structuies 16 have survived from the Heitoh
Hetchy era. Three oiher holels, four farge Hatch Hetchy project buildings, as well as a number of smallor
commercial structures and dweiling houses which were erecied during the Hetch Hetchy era are now gone.
In addition to the Groveland Hotel Annex and the Chariotie Hotel, only a couple of smatl NecClassical
commaercial buildings nave survived from this era. Groveland aisc boasts f about a dozen NeoGlassical
homes censtructed betwean 1335 and 1930. Besides baing & rare examiplie of NeoClassica! architecture, the
Groveland Hotel Annax prevides a siriking example of the prosperity of the Hetch Hetchy davs. The GLuiiding
has a high degree oi mtegrily, having undergone relatively few modificaticns during its lifetime. it dispiays a
pride in werkmanship with its substantial infrastructure and superb finishing components of rustic *" groove
siding, two siory balocny witn solid rails, ey windows across the north anc east facades, and dentils across
the front save. The building alsc derives significance under Criteria A, in its association with the Groveland
Hotel as an impoertant place for the hostelry trade and boarding house business. it could alsc be suggestsad
that both the Groveland Hotct and Hctel Annex are significant under the category of “conserveation” in that they
retlect the infuence and value that tourism to Yosemite Park has had on the fittle town of Groveland.

Brief Contextual Background

In 1848 Benjamin Wood led the first known group of gold seekers intc what is now Tuolumne County.
One of the merabers of the "Wood's Farty* was an American by the name of Jarnes D. Savage. Savage was
widowed in 184€ ac the result of the rigors of an cverland journey from the East. Shortly after his airivai to
California, Savage began marrying into varicus Indian tribes. His "wives" afforded him favorabie positicn with
tribal leaders. In the Spring of 1849 Savage, his wives, and several other Americans left Woods Creek anid
ventured into the rugged rmauntains southeast of the Tuoiumne River. About 2,200 feet higher in eievaticn
than the river, Savage's parly discovered placers aiong a smail stream fiowing through a broad. flat valiey.
A secord encampment was soon established in a smalier valley some three miles to the ecast. Cailectively,
the mining camps were known as "Savage's Diggings." Although Savage was known for his abiiity fo negotiate
peaceful reiations wit- locai ‘ndian tribes, his owr smali band of Indians apparently proved too much a cause
for tension with the incoming tide of miners. As a result, Savage left the area. By the Spring of 1850 the
western camp had become commonly known as “Big Oak Flat," in tribute to a particularly large specimen that
stood near the west end of town. Meanwhile, many Mexicans had take:: up rospeciing 1 and around
Savage's eastern camp. The cause for renaming this camp is unclear but a Mexican apparently killed a fellow
countrymar, possibly in an attempt to steal gold or a herse {or both). The feloen was quickly apprehended,
triad, convicted and, as traaition has it, hung on an old oak trea in camp. The camp became known as
"Garrote." Members of a smaller camp lccated at San Iginacio Flat, some three miles to the east, aitended the
proceedings and, thus, the two camps became known as “First Garrote" {or simply, "Garrote”) and "Second
Garrote." They were also called “Garrote No. 1" and "Garrote Ne, 2.

Tuolumne County was created in 1850, the same year California achieved sta*chood. By 1852 nost offices
had been established in Big Oak Flat ard First Garrote. A thriving population of several hiundred to a few
thousand miners and cther residents led to the erection of numerous buiidings of wood, stone, and adobe
construction. 8Big Cak lat inzorporated as a city in 1860 but & vlevastaling fire in 1863 laid wasie most of the
town. With the Goid Riish era of prosperity alreacy waning, Big Oak Flat disincorporated in 18€4. Most of the
buildings iost in the fire were never rebulit. First Garrote was spared the ravaging eifects of fire, so common
to other mining camps. Consequently, even though the town was smaller than Big Qak Flat, more of its Goid
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Rush era Lbuildings have survived to the present day. i1 1875 a more sixid populace, desirous of portraying
a better image to the iraveling public, succeeaed in having First Garrote renamed Groveiand.

in addition to tiwe Gold Rush, Big Oak Flat and Groveiand experienced twe other periods of significant
eccnomic grewth, First was the hard rock mining boom, from abiout 1835 to World War 1, during which time
several stamp mills and numercus other buildings were erected to accommodate the thriving business of
mining. On the heeus of this period came the Hetch Hetchy era (1914 to 1329), a reference tc the construction
days cf the i{etch Hetchy Water and Power System, a project undertaken by the City and County of 3an
Francizcc. The U.E. Congress approved the damming ¢f Hetch Hetchy Valiey (located within Yosemite
Netionai Park) in 1513, Because of its strategic location, San Francisco chose Groveland as its "Mountain
Division Headquarters.” A railroad was built to transport the materials, equipment and {akborers to damsite, and
to the work camps along the aqueduct system. The ling started at 4 point on the Sieira Railtoad in wesiain
Tuciumne County and extended twenty-seven miles eastward to Groveland. Damisite was ancother forty-one
miles east of town. Groveland became the site for tha railroad shops and warehouse. This irnmense new labor
toree eiicited a need for renovation and new construction. Today, many of Groveland’s builcings date from
this era. A fourth period of pronounced ecoromic growti began in the rate 1860s and continues 1o the
cresent. Despite development pressures, much of tiw business district still carries the ambiance of an early
wentieth century, wastern mountain town with the subjact preperty serving as a significant coniributor o hat
hisiuric uilt enviroriment.

Historical Background of subject Property

in 1866 Geourge Reed, in conveying title to Matthew Foot, had recordac that the Groveland Hotel property
inciuded "...two azjcining iote fenced in, contairing seven acres mors or ie¢ss and on which is situated a large
adobe house and a separate shed, and fruit trees. Said premises are at thie location and t{rading post of
Joshua D. Crippen & Co. in 1850 and the !ocaiion wes purchased frem them and occupied by the said
George Reed in 1851 and continuously until this date... and is situated east and adjcining with the street
hetween the iots on which are lccated the Stone hous: and parn of Jarnes Tannahiil..." (Tannahill's "Stone
house" ctill stands today.; Joshua Crippen’s possessory claim is unrecorded. Tuclumne County’s Tax Roli
archives begin with 1852 but, curiously, George Reed doesn’t appear untii the 1853 listing (Crippen's name
isn't listed either). Based on the ianguage of the Reed to Foot transaction, the Groveland Hotel (adobe
building) was probably built for Crippen in 1880. Some sources credit Rsed with the erection of this building,
howevsr Reed was a successful sawmiil operator and probably wouin have opted for an all wood structure
rather than build something made nearly entirely of stone and adobe. Reed’s use of the building is unknown
other than being listed in the Tax Rolls as a "dweliing house." Furithermore, a wood frame building erected
circa 1352 (known &s the Washington Hotel) has traditionally been cited as Groveland's first hotel.

The oldest existing photograph of the Groveland IHotel's adobe building dates from the 1880s. The
photograph appears to show a structure that had undergone little, if any, change since its original construction
in 1850. This photegraph. coupled with the way the building looks today, svidences a striking similarity
between the adobe building and the Larkin House located in Monterey. Althcugh no information has keen
uncovered to subsiantiate that the Groveland Hotel's adobe building architecture was inspired by the
Monterey Colonial style a case can be made that Joshua Crippen was so influenced wher: he established his
trading post in old Carrote. Such a connection, if validated, would make Crippen'’s trading post a rare (maybe
only) example of @ Monterey Colonial building to be found in the Sierra Nevada Mounta:ns today.

Matthew Foct is the first owner of the subject preoperty known to have operated a hostelry business at
*his location. Maithew Foot came to Garrote during the Gold Rush as a prospector. With his acquisition of the
reed property, the adobe building bacame known as the "Garrote Hotel." The business followed suit with the
town. being renamed the Groveland Hotel in 1875. In 1877, Groveland was surveyed, the official townsite
covering some 234 acres. Matthew Foot's parcel was Lot 5 of Block 4 encompassing about seven acres upon
the north end of which stocd the Groveiand Hotel. in 1882 H. O. Lang wrote, in his history of Tuolumne
County, that Matthew Foot had been engaged in the "hotel-keeping” business for guite sometime, said
enterprise “...baing carned on in & way highily acceptable {0 the traveling public." Lang’s comments suggests
that tourism (to Yosemile Park) had become an impcrtant component of the Groveland Hotel's business trade.

The next owner of the Groveland Hotel was the son of Thomas C. Reaid, a successful gold miner who
came to Califernia in 1843, Thomas R. Reid (the son) was born in Garrote in 1856. Thomas R. acquired the
Savory Hotel (formeriy known as the Washington Hotel) in 1882. It was located acrcss the street and slightly
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west of the Gioveland Hotel. Alsc included in the acquisition was the Savory Hotel Gaicen, a parcei
designated as Lot 6 of Siock 4 on the Groveland Townsite Map of 1877, The arcen lot was just cast of the
Groveland Hotel. The foilowing year Thomes R. purchased the Groveland Hotel, withy James Taninahiil olding
a Deed of Trust. The oldest photograph of the Groveland Hotel dates from this era and showe a two story
building with wrap-arcund veranda very similar to the way ihe building looks today. The Groveiand Hotel's
only competiticn, the Savory Hotel, was tom down in 1886-87. Reid then sold his properties (inciuding the
Groveiand Hotel) to Dadrick Meyer, the Estate of yohn Meyer, and Mrs. Mary A. Tennahill in (€87 Taanahili.
whose husband, James, had passed away in 15884, soid her interest to the Meyers 1830.

Tre rdayer hrothers, John Dedrick (Dicky ara Joiin Heinnch (Henry), came to Groveland fiom Germany
dining ifie Gold Rush. They both built up large, successful cattle ranches sitvated some four milee northeast
of Greveiland. in 1900, property vaives fook a sharp increase reflecting the impact of the hard rockt mining
boom. The Meyei's Gioveland holdings, however, ir.creased sunstantially more than most of the oiher
toewnsite properties. Their impzrovement assessmeni for Lot 5 ~f Blook 4 rose from $600 in 1899 to $2,200 in
160G, A singie story, wood frame building copreximately 25 feet wide vy 44 Teat deep (willy 8 “oci by 20
{201 rezr extensicen) haa beern added along the west side of ihe Jroveland Holel. This building coved as &
nar. Two smail ocutbuildings were also erected s the scuth of the »dobe buiding. The Grovelens Hotel wae
nrobably rencvated, as weil. Ar ad in a July 1903 Tuolimne Prospector (a Grovelarnd Newspayer of that eia)
reads ihat 12 "Grovelaind Hotel and Bar* have been "newly furnished threughout everything stricily firsi-ciass.”
C. W. Sheridan was “preprigtor” {or the businese, said to ve "~eadyuarters for Fining Mer:.”

The mining connection was a continuation of previous owrers marketing strategy. Both Foct and Reid
held ownership in various focal mines and both mien would have been sensitive to the needs of their peers.
Foot had even crected a wocd frame builcing scross the stroet e the Helei during his ownership, which
nac served as & miner's meeting hail. In fact. it's probable that the Meyers’ increased assessiments in 1800
reflected the replacement of Foot's old hall building with a new struciure that functioned as toth 2 miner's
hall and aiso as a dance hall. By 1900 Groveland's economy was being driven by the mining indusiry and
the miner's affairs seamed tc have been centered 2! the east end of town where the Groveland Hctet and Bar,
e neighboring dance hall, and Tannahill’'s old stone building which now served as “Jake's Saloon' stood.
While at least two other hotels existed in tcwn, the Gruveland Heiel was still the largest and most impressive
hostelry and was strategically located at the hub of Groveland's liusiness affairs.

In 1915 Timothy K. Carlon purchased the Meyer croperties. The Meyers, however, are believed to have
remained as business managers through much ctf Carlen's ownership. Aithough illiterate, Caricn had become
a vary successful caitie rancher with extensive land holdings both inside and outside of Tuclumne County.
He's been described as one of Tuclumne County’s first "miliioraire catiteran.” In the spring of 19158, Carion
retained the architect, Woodward Withered, from San Francisco to oversee the completion of the Annex
Luilding and the reniovation of the adobe bullding. The Tuciumne independent (a local county newspaper)
aisc reported that iocal contractor, Robert Scuidamore of Sonora had been hired to perform the construction
and rernodeling. A painting ccntract was awarded to C. G. Sodergren of Soncra. Carlon alsc reportediy had
crdered new furnishings. The Hotei Annex building doubled Carlun’s improvement assessmeiiis for Lot 5 of
Biack 4 (irom $2,000 to $4,000). Scon after the compietion of the Hotel Annex, the first floor of the adobe
building was converted 1o a restaurant. The hugh influx of Hetch Hetchy workers caused a criticat housing
shortage and, as a temporary measure, Carlon had a row of 12 tents with weod platforms ereced aleng the
east sige of the Hotel Annex. These "improvemerits” were removed in 1924,

Groveland's hard rock nining era econoimy never achieved the ievel of success that the Hetch Hetchy
construction period did. By 1315, mining had lapsed into an irreversible decline but the commencement of
the Hetch Hetchy project insured prosperity for Groveland until the 1930s. Carlon’s Hotel Annex building
signaled the beginning of a iiew construction boom. His NeoClassical styled Hotel Annex may have sat a
trend. When the Heich Heteny office buillding, hospital and ciubhouse were erected San Francisco adhered
i this architectu @l theme. & :veral other NeoCiassicai struciures also appeared, including three hoteis anc
saveral single siory commercial buildings. Of these structures, the Groveland Hotel Annex and the Charlofte
Hotel are the most impressive survivors (San Frandisco had then facilities removed by the end ! the 1830s).

During the prospercus yeers of the teens and iwerniies, the Groveiand Hotal became well known for its
parties and dances. In fact, a rivalry of sarts existed between the Groveland Hotel, Priest Hotel, the Cliff House
and several other resorts as 10 who couid put on the best ceiedration. The «yala Saturday night dances
reflected both the wealth that the Hetch Hetchy crojact had brought 1o the arsa as well as the incraase in
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recreational trafiic along the Big Dax Fiat Road o Yosemiite. Perhaps another ingredient to their succoss was
prohibition, as many of these tectivities inclucied the serviry of “special” drinks, something hard to come by
in the larger towns and cities. Of all ihese resorts, oniy the Groveland Hotel has sursvec c tcday.

Ir 1934, Carion eniered inte a three year iease with 7. H. Lightner and P. B. R. Lightner or the "Groveland
Hotel and Annex* and "Groveland Hotel Soft Orink Farier " The foliowing vear Carlon sold the minarai righis
t= the iand heneatr the Hotel and Parlor. Cver the vears beth the Meyers and Carlon had baen selling cff
pieces cf Lot 8. in 1928€, when Carlon scid the Groveiand Hotel, Annex, and Parlor, the sale inciuded only the
northarn portions of Lots 5 and 6 of Block 4. The parce! commenced 2t a point on the scuth side of 3ain
Strzet extending northeast 6 feef, thence anctiher 58 fuet 4 inchas northeasterly, thence soutneast 64.1 Teat,
thencs souiheasterly another 39.8 feet, thence scuthwest 101.8 feet, and! finally northwest & feet o the point
of bacinning. The parce! which was surveyed by C. W. Terry on October 3, 1835 included the Hctel "and 4
other suildings siiuated thereon” but it exciuded most of the seven acres that Foot had claimed when Lot £
was suiveyed baci in 1877. Terny’'s map was net recnrded and hasn't beer located. Because the Aryex
huilding encroasied vidon Lot 6, Carlon had decidad ic spiit this lot and only include that porticn whign was
50 encumbered.

it xeeping was 'eirly prosperous quring the Goid Aush era of the 1850s and '60s. During the 1873s and
‘80s tourism (orimarily Yosemite bound tvavelers) began having an impact on Groveland’s economy. Arcbust
econumy continued from the micg-1399s uniil the deparivre of the MHetch Helchy consiriction craws in the jate
1u20s. Tne Great Depression reduced Groveland viniizily 1o a ghest town. it wasn't until wen after Worna Wer
Two it at Groveland’s economy began o . sbound. T2 succession of wwners who opevated the Groveland
Hotel afier the Carlon era struggled and sometimes failed in keeping the business going. It was during these
yeais that the Groveland Hotel was also knowr: as the Groveland Inn. in 1940, the mineral rights were reunited
with the “surface rights® of the hotei propeity. During this decade the Groveland Hotel Sar aisc served as a
Greyhound Bus Step. Even though tourism was en the rice, the Groveland Hoiel closed iis doors in the izte
195Cs. Fortunately, though, the Groveland Hotel, Restaurant. and Bar were recpened in 1980. The enterprizes
lasted uithii 1969 at which time the preperty was soid through foreclosure to Western Lakes Properiies, ine.
‘Tne real estate development corporation was a subsidiary of Boise Cascade of idaho (the lumber giant). The
corgoration was in the midst of promoting the newly comgileted Pine Mountain Lake subdivision (about 2 mile
nertheast of Groveland). Boise Cascade remodeled and converted the Sroveland Hotel and Hotel Annex into
an ofiice building complex for real estate agents and reiated professionais. The iumber company aiso had the
old bar rocm (buiit by the Meyers) demciished and the area here and immediately behind the hotel buildings
was ierraced and landscaped.

in 1973 Ray ard Beulah Douglas, and Bert and Jesephine Pike acquired the Groveland Hotel. They
leased the facilities to the Stanislaus National Forest (USDA). The Groveland District Ranger Station officers
and staff reiccated from facilities near Buck Meadowrs to Groveland in 1973. During the government's stay few
changes were made to the buildings. The Forest Service moved back te the Buck Meadows area in 1986. The
Groveland Hotel was soid shortly thereafter. At this point the property entered into its darkest period when
the new owners stripped both buildings of their interiors and then ran into financial disaster, ending in both
foreciosure and bankrupicy. The Groveland Hotel and Annex buildings, left as empty shells, came perilously
close to being cocndemned.

Since acquisition cf the property, the cuirent cwners, ‘3rover and Paggy Mosley, have undertaken a
massive restoration program. The expenditure of nearly a million doilars has brought The Groveland Hote! and
ratel Anpex back 1o the splendor cf the Hetch Hetchy days. The contractors, Tony Smith Construction of
Grovelang, have careiully restored the exiericrs. All wiodifications, reguired to address current health and
safety standards or improve efficiency, have beer carred out in harmony with the thematic context of the
architecture. Interiors, though greaily upscalz, have been crafted and furnished with early twentieth century
fashions. Today, the Groveland Hotel has an cffice, pantry, liguor cellar and storage i the basement; cfiice,
bar and restaurant on the first floor; and four notel rooms. canference and sitling roems on the second floor.
The Haotel Annex contains an office, storage an raun-ry in the basement: foui hotel rooms and two suiies
on the first Hoor and six rooms and one suite on the secend floor. LDespite the vast amount of work
perfurraed, the Groveland Hotel and Hotel Annex are rexdily recognicakie as the same structures which
gracad the east end of Groveland’s husiness district during the Hetch Heteny' ara. Collectively, they reprasent
the zpeax of prosperity ot Groveland's iHetch Hetchy censtruction days. The Groveland Hotei (adobe), as
inentioned earlier, shows & remarkable similarity to the Larkin House it Moriterey and provides an excellerit
msight into the craflsmanship as well as success of Grove.and’s (Garrore’s) Goid Rush era.
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1. Grovelanc Hotel Annex, south eievation. 2' Groveland Hotel Annex, east elevation.
3: Groveland Hote! Arnex, north {front) elevation, 4: Grovaland Hotel, north (front) elevation.
%. Groveland Hotel, west elevation. 6. Grovelaind Hotel, south elevation.

7. Groveland Hote! and Annex, honth elavations.

Photographe taken by Miaitk V' Thornton. Negatives on file with same, Groveland, California.
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Tax Assessor's Piat Map, March 1982 (Book 7 Page 8)
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Record of Survey, September 18968 (Voluine 116 Page 243)

Highiighted boundaries delineates anproximate location of Groveiand Hotei and Hotei Annex baiidings.

T
- — tad
T S e

; . ! . o cems,
. INMERT DETArL B [
. ‘ »cacs 1"ev0" w3,
K ALY

o rot 4 poe R e 6~
o : ~ ) -

mem

Bt vew

re

RECCRD OQOF SURVEY

it A JURVEY 87 LARKDS DULERBED tm TrZ DLLD
FINED I VRLUMA (6 De DETICa L ARCHERBA AT Bagt
A, TUOLUMMNE SOUNTY RECIRDS 4anD ani? Tr: Soe-
Yo P ABY € oF Tuf LRAVIIANA TO@HITL Y owa~
TER WREY DF A LA L Y che @ n TIR Bew ke DP Tk =
©OF RUCTIBa P ©3, 12 WOALORPEAL TR TARL IVERT
OF TIPS L Lo ImT €, Laciel s

teare Eoan’

ST T
SERTIFICATE OF Lams Sumvyvos

Tas ROp LHrvacHy repeciCali @ surncs mads by e o woper
Wy TrUCI O oy (A Srmtnt s /N RO PN Gl menes of Ine
hamd Servapers Al ol tae repvers P the TYOLUMNE

COII T Ty Tl SONFPALY urng Ruwus? 96, 4.

e ol [T

Hrctaied und s rcgor |
Cochilinale 4o. Pt L

P, -
SERTIFICATE O COUwNTY BURVEYORN \‘ »‘T—‘ .

Tars s AT Deve eremincd o §rafor s ot ghe e
g meats boa! Soresyorts Jad Ll um sy -/*?(’u

SEPTIPIZAYY D& CounTy necomoen

s Pt oy & Tranitae. <968 i sm wm
Volvmre 2 ol Rensod of Surveys o/ Sope £ _ ot Fos 7
resenst o oe Tosinane Cowsdy Swuevogos

N
HE
«

L N id P
A% Foe S Iy el )\( ‘M
DM W, VELLT
Tiwlomce Loty Kooprstee. -
4Zr4
BARIS OF BIAARMG -

ot Zone I lowdirt od hrocy ar erbobishes vbv Codpome

o P S T
wire swred o5 kb brea of Voorcsp for fhe: SecsiRy Fus S el 2D
Yol Phass Lavemy PO D" |

ppeme © AL

@ G e e et m s s 8.5 Doy 25080 37 Kbl
O Aoty Lot @4 avtheaion
& Ak A rrmmas -y

L e

Bl s masp ot anwiboi O Dmssdis 4K swnbort.
<o £ule - S eotess -~

A et o i

bosrwac oo

12



